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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The ranch house is a partial dugout constructed of native limestone. It is
| a two room structure, the rooms being separated by a frame wall and a lime-
stone fireplace facing into the north room. 12 x 12" bridge timbers form
the ridge beams, which span from the end walls to the fireplace. The roof
has a pitch of approximately 1 1/2:12, and is constructed of 2 x 6" joists
approximately 18" on center. It is sheathed with 4" T § G fir flooring,
and is roofed with 30# asphalt-impregnated rolled roofing secured at the
seams with wood lath to prevent curling in the high winds typical of the
area. The structure has 6 over 6 single hung windows in the north and
west walls, and 6 1light fixed windows in the south and east walls. The
exaet type of original door is unknown, but the structure presently con-
tains 2 over 2 paneled doors typical to the area and period. All window
and door openings were spanned by shallow segmental arches. The floors
consisted of a trowelled mortar made in place with slaked quicklime paste
and natural soil. The stone walls were plastered with a lime plaster

made with sand from the nearby creek bed. All the lime was fired in a
kiln on the ranch about 1/2 mile from the ranch house.

This structure has been carefully restored by the National Park Service in
accordance with an approved Historic Structures Report prepared by A. Lewis
Koue in 1970, with the exception that the windows and doors were replaced
rather than just screened, the floor was repaired, and some replastering

of the interior walls was undertaken. Wherever possible, the interior
plaster (including the graffiti, some of which is in itself a historic
document) was preserved. Additional historical research was carried out
prior to the work in the form of personal interviews with Mrs. Monte Rock-
well, daughter of Dave McBride and resident of the structure during part of
her childhood. This resulted in one correction to the Koue report (the
porch was never finished; the photograph contained in the report, rather
than being taken during construction, was taken late in the occupancy of the
McBrides, and shows it in a state of disrepair). These interviews also pro-
vided the basis for the type of windows and doors used in the restoration.

The restoration work consisted of straightening the toppling fireplace
chimney, straightening the collapsing east wall and installing a subsurface
drainage system and retaining wall to prevent future damage to the wall, re-
construction of the roof (substantial amounts of the roof remained to give
us documentary evidence, but none was sound enough to be retained), repoint-
ing of the stone walls, replacement of the doors and windows, and repair to
the interior floor and plaster. The chain-link fence surrounding the struc-
ture, although a visual intrusion, was retained for the time being to pro-
tect it from vandalism, since the structure is located in an infrequently
patrolled area.

The remains of two other minor structures associated with the ranch house are
still in existence. According to Mrs. Rockwell, there was an ice house con-
structed of salvage bridge timbers and insulated with hay bales. This
structure has totally collapsed and there remains only a pile of heavy
timbers within the fenced area. There is also a dugout storage shed or gar-
age near the road several hundred feet to the south of the house. This
Structure does not date to the McBride period. It is relatively intact,
Lbut _unsound. : . ,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The McBride House is the oldest remaining ranch house in Potter County and
has been designated as being worthy of preservation by the Potter County
Historical Survey Committee.

The initial establishment of ranches in the Lake Meredith area began in

the late 1870's. At this time cattle companies were staking hugH-tracﬁ% of
land throughout the Texas Panhandle. In 1897 David Nicholas McBride
purchased four sections of land from a British concern, the American Pas-
toral Company, one of the large land and cattle companies which operated

in this area. For a few years McBride and his family lived in a frame
house on the land. Then, in 1903, he built his new home, a limestone rock
building, in the area now known as McBride Canyon. Today the structure

is the oldest remaining ranch house in Potter County and is one of the

most substantial structures in the park which dates from the early ranching
era. As mcBride Canyon has become a focal point for recreational aetivities,
the house is very accessible. It constitutes a worthwhile reminder of the
initial and still important economic pursuit by Anglo-Americans in this
area.




""The History of the McBride Ranch House,' unpublished manuscript

No. 3234, Texas State Historical Survey Committee, Austin,
Texas.

Koue, A. Lewis Historic Structures Report, McBride Ranch House.

National Park Service, Denver Service Center, March 1972.
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2. LOCATION

The McBride Ranch House is located at the head of the McBride Canyon in
Sanford Recreation Area. It is reached from Texas Route 136 by approxi-

mately 6 miles of paved road..
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